
AGENDA 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, December 9, 2014, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 
21420 Main St. NE, Aurora, OR  97002 

 
1.  Call to Order of the City Council Meeting 
 
2. City Recorder Calls Roll 
 
   Mayor     Graupp 
  Councilor Sallee 
  Councilor Brotherton 
  Councilor Sahlin 
  Councilor Vlcek 
 
3. Consent Agenda 
 

I. City Council Meeting Minutes – November 12, 2014  
II. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes –November 2014 
III. Historic Review Board Minutes –October 2014 
 

Correspondence  
 

I.  
 

4. Visitors 
  Anyone wishing to address the City Council concerning items not already on the 

meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the 
City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 

 
5. Mayor’s Report 

• Various Discussion Points/Topics 
 
6. Discussion with Parks Committee 
 
7. Discussion with Traffic Safety Commission 
  
8. Reports 
  

A. Marion County Deputy Report – (included in your packet) 
 
 

Aurora City Council Agenda  December 09, 2014 
 

This is a public meeting and all interested citizens are invited to attend.  The meeting place is not handicapped 
accessible; those needing assistance should contact the city Office three (3) working days before regularly scheduled 
meetings. The minutes of this and all public meetings are available at City Hall during regular business hours. All 
meetings are audio taped and may be video taped 

  



B. Finance Officer’s Report – Financials (included in your packets) 
1. Revenue & Expense Report 

 
C. Public Works Department’s Report – ( not included in your packet) 

1. Monthly Status Report (Storm Water) 
2. Monthly Status Report (Water) 
3. Parks Report, OSU Tree Report 
4. Sewer Dept Report 

 
D. City Recorder’s Report (included in your packet)  

o Acknowledgement letter Verizon wireless and discussion of contract 
regarding taxes.  

 
 

E. City Attorney’s Report – (not Included in your packet)  
•  Updates on outstanding projects 

 
9. Ordinances and Resolutions & Proclamations  

  
A.  
  

10. New Business 
 

A. Discussion and or Action on Recommendation of Planning Commission to Renew 
Chair Schaefer and Commissioners Graham term for another 4 years.  

B. Discussion and or Action on Recommendation of Historic Review Board to 
Renew Chair Abernathy to the Historic Review Board and to accept Bill Simon’s 
letter of Resignation from HRB.  

C. Discussion and or Action on Allocation of Net Income from the Aurora Outdoor 
Antiques Faire.  

D. Discussion and or Action on Audit Report if Available. 
E. Acknowledgment of Formal Elections Results. 
 

11. Old Business    
 

A.   
 
12. Adjourn   

Aurora City Council Agenda  December 09, 2014 
 

This is a public meeting and all interested citizens are invited to attend.  The meeting place is not handicapped 
accessible; those needing assistance should contact the city Office three (3) working days before regularly scheduled 
meetings. The minutes of this and all public meetings are available at City Hall during regular business hours. All 
meetings are audio taped and may be video taped 

  



Minutes 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Wednesday, November 12, 2014, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 
21420 Main St. NE, Aurora, OR  97002 

 
STAFF PRESENT:    Mary Lambert, Finance 
     Darrel Lockard, Public Works Superintendent  
     Kelly Richardson, City Recorder 
     Dennis Koho, City Attorney 
     Pete Marcellais, Marion County Deputy 
 
STAFF ABSENT:    
         
 
VISITORS PRESENT:   
    
             

1. Call to Order of the City Council Meeting   
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Bill Graupp at 7:00 p.m. 

 
2. City Recorder does roll call 
 
   Mayor Graupp – present 
   Councilor Sallee-  present 
   Councilor Brotherton -absent 
   Councilor Sahlin – present 
   Councilor Vlcek – absent 
 
3. Consent Agenda 
 

I. City Council Meeting Minutes – October 14, 2014  
II. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes –October 2014 
III. Historic Review Board Minutes –September 2014 

 
 

Correspondence  
 

I.  
 
Motion to approve the consent agenda as presented was made by Councilor Sallee and is 
seconded by Councilor Sahlin. Motion Approved by all.  
 
For the record it is stated by Mayor Graupp there is a quorum present.  

4. Visitors 

  Page 1 of 4 
City Council Meeting November 12, 2014 



  Anyone wishing to address the City Council concerning items not already on the 
meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the 
City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 

 
  
5. Mayor’s Report, Mayor Graupp  

• Various Discussion Points/Topics 
• Recap of elections,  
• Info regarding church pending/possible improvements 

 
6. Discussion with Parks Committee, No real discussion regarding parks other than Public 

Works informs Council they have been cleaning up a lot of tree limbs and debris lately.  
 
 
7. Discussion with Traffic Safety Commission, No one is present. Councilor Sallee is 

interested in possibly installing speed bumps along Liberty Street in hopes to slow traffic 
down. There is mixed opinions on whether or not they agree with having speed bumps 
down Liberty and if it would do any good or not. Finance Officer, Lambert suggests a 
blinking speed light that is what they have done in other cities although I don’t know 
what costs would be involved.  

 The Council decides that something should go in the next city news letter informing the 
public of what is being discussed so they have an opportunity to voice their concerns if 
any.  

  
8. Reports  

A. Marion County Deputy Report – (not included in your packet) 
• Not a lot has been happening  
• the burglary turned out to be nothing 
• theft of service was a bounced check 
• welfare check turned out to be nothing as well 
• basic traffic stops 
• contract doesn’t end until July, 2015 

 
There is a brief discussion regarding a recent newspaper article in the Canby Herald 
regarding armed security at our local schools. It too is mixed opinions on whether or not 
this is good idea or not.  

 
B. Finance Officer’s Report – Financials ( included in your packets) 

1. Revenue & Expense Report 
• I wanted to inform Council that the tax assessor has sent us a bill 

regarding the franchise revenue. This will need to be budgeted for in the 
years to come.  

• There is also a brief discussion regarding setting some dollars aside for our 
aging public works vehicles.  

 
 

  Page 2 of 4 
City Council Meeting November 12, 2014 



C. Public Works Department’s Report – (included in your packet) 
1. Monthly Status Report (Storm Water) 
2. Monthly Status Report (Water)  
3. Parks Report, OSU Tree Report 
4. Sewer Dept Report 

• The routine water meter installation is going well.  
• Reiterates the concern of equipment repairs on the aging vehicles.  
• Experiencing a high volume of call outs and alarms on both the water and 

sewer departments. A lot of overtime and comp time are accruing for 
employee Lowe. We really need to get these issues resolved so the hours 
will stop accruing for this employee.  

• Councilor Sallee ask for a detailed list of due dates for test results needed 
in both water and sewer to assure compliance. Public Works 
Superintendent informs Council that he has contacted DEQ regarding this 
list. I also wanted to inform Council that our NPDS permit is up for 
renewal.  

• TMDL report is now finished and submitted.  
• Councilor Sallee reiterates the importance of staying within hours. 

Superintendent Lockard states that at the next budget cycle we may need 
to reevaluate setting dollars aside for overtime because currently employee 
Lowe is forced to take comp time which then we are cut short employees 
and cuts down our effectiveness. Many of these meters are taking 8 hours 
to replace.  
 

D. City Recorder’s Report (included in your packet)  
• Has nothing new really to report other than routine ongoing items  
• Working still with HD supply regarding software integration.  Which had not 

gone as well as I had hoped but I was able to work through it all.  
 

E. City Attorney’s Report – (not Included in your packet)  
• Rodger Eddy, claim has been filed with the court on foreclosure issue there 

has been no response from Tom Davis the attorney for Mr. Eddy he may be 
contacting the city at some point. There are no additional liens at this time. 
Working with one judge on this he stated that he will get 180 days to appeal at 
which point we can then take it over or come up with a plan. Yes, we filed on 
both properties. The hearing will be a fresh start and we may want to have an 
engineer report on file as well. Councilor Sahlin asks if we can ask the 
Salinas’s engineer to help us out on this. Mayor pointed out that on this past 
weekend there is a large hole in the ground possibly a tank hole and the cars 
are gone at this point as well, Councilor Sahlin states that he is trying to show 
clean up however we should document all activities at this point. Koho 
requests Mayor Graupp to put it in writing stating the changes or damage. 
Councilor Sahlin, if we end up taking possession of the land we should take 
soil samples to cover us for any possible future expense.  

• We have sent letters to both the Kings regarding the deck violation and on several 
occasions we have attempted contact to a MR. Sills regarding his contributing 

  Page 3 of 4 
City Council Meeting November 12, 2014 



structure building that he replaced wood windows without permission and or 
approval, I have asked staff to follow through with the lien process. Mayor Graupp, I 
spoke with the Salem landmarks commission and she stated you need to file liens as 
stated by code.  

• We can’t hit everybody but focusing on new construction and definitely contributing 
structures, Council agrees.  

• Councilor Sallee suggests that it would be nice if HRB could hold quarterly sessions 
targeting each home and informing them of what is expected in the district. 
 

9. Ordinances and Resolutions & Proclamations  
  
A. Discussion and or Action on Second Reading of Ordinance Number 477 An 

Ordinance Providing for a Cross Connection Program and repealing Ordinance 
Number 387. 

 Councilor Sallee is still concerned with the enforcement aspect of this Ordinance 
and strongly feels that the Council should take advantage of any and all ways to 
inform the public that this Ordinance has been passed and what is expected of 
them.  

Staff is in favor of letters being sent out each year informing citizens that they need to 
have their backflow devices inspected each year.  

 
Motion to approve the second reading of Ordinance Number 477 is made by Councilor 

Sahlin and seconded by Councilor Sallee. Passed by all.  
 

10. New Business 
 
 A. Discussion and or Action on Ordinance Number 477 An Ordinance to Change the 
  Current Cross Connection Program. 
 
11. Old Business    
 
12. Adjourn 
 
  Mayor Graupp adjourns the November 12, 2014 Council meeting at 8:25 pm.  
 
 

__________________________________ 

Bill Graupp, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Kelly Richardson, CMC 
City Recorder 

  Page 4 of 4 
City Council Meeting November 12, 2014 



























Traff Stop / Violation 
7 

31.8% 

Citzen Contact / Assist 
5 

22.7% 

Domestic Disturbance 
2 

9.1% 

Theft 
2 

9.1% 

Area Check 
1 

4.5% 

Audible Alarm - Police 
1 

4.5% 

Criminal Mischief 
1 

4.5% 

Found Property 
1 

4.5% 

Message For Officer 
1 

4.5% 

Officer Needs Cover 
1 

4.5% 

Aurora Top Calls for Service  
November 2014 



0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

C
it

ze
n

 C
o

n
ta

ct
 /

 A
ss

is
t 

D
o

m
es

ti
c 

D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 

Th
ef

t 

Tr
af

f 
St

o
p

 /
 V

io
la

ti
o

n
 

A
re

a 
C

h
ec

k 

A
u

d
ib

le
 A

la
rm

 -
 P

o
lic

e 

C
ri

m
in

al
 M

is
ch

ie
f 

Fo
u

n
d

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 

O
ff

ic
er

 N
e

ed
s 

C
o

ve
r 

Su
sp

ic
io

u
s 

A
ct

iv
it

y 

C
al

ls
 

Call Type 

Call Type by Primary Deputy  
November 2014 

Other 

Contract 



0:00-6:00 
8 

35% 

6:00-12:00 
3 

13% 

12:00-18:00 
9 

39% 

18:00-0:00 
3 

13% 

Aurora Calls for Service by Hours Range 
November 2014 

Sunday 
2 

9% Monday 
2 

9% 

Tuesday 
6 

26% Wednesday 
4 

17% 

Thursday 
3 

13% 

Friday 
2 

9% 

Saturday 
4 

17% 

Aurora Calls for Service by Day of Week 
November 2014 



0 5 10 15 20 25 30 

Contract 

Other 

Grand Total 

21 

28 

25 

Minutes 

Aurora Calls Average Call Length 
November 2014 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

Contract Other 

192 

360 

M
in

u
te

s 

Aurora Calls Total Call Length 
November 2014 

0 2 4 6 8 10 

Contract 

Other 

Grand Total 

0.33 

9.17 

4.20 

Minutes 

Aurora Calls Average Call Arrival Time 
November 2014 



Contract 
9 

39% 

Other 
14 

61% 

Aurora Calls by Primary Deputy 
November 2014 



Aurora Calls for Service November 2014

EVENTID CASEID Combined Type PRIMARY_UNIT CREATE_DATE DISPATCH_DATE ARRIVAL_DATE CLEARED_DATE Arrival in Minutes Call Length in Minutes DISPOSITION ZONE PRIORITY AGENCY SOURCE LOCATION

SMS201411030119 SMS14021408 Criminal Mischief A136 11/3/2014 13:52 11/3/2014 16:44 11/3/2014 17:01 17.37 5 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS 14747 ALBERS WY NE (MapBook:1432), AURORA  (/AIRPORT RD NE)

SMS201411040080 Message For Officer A195 11/4/2014 11:24 11/4/2014 11:39 11/4/2014 11:42 11/4/2014 12:15 2.88 32.50 0 SMS01-AURORA 5 SMS 14747 ALBERS WY NE (MapBook:1432), AURORA  (/AIRPORT RD NE)

SMS201411040111 Citzen Contact / Assist A195 11/4/2014 13:47 11/4/2014 13:47 11/4/2014 13:47 11/4/2014 13:57 0.00 9.53 0 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS 14746 ALBERS WY NE (MapBook:1432), AURORA  (/AIRPORT RD NE)

SMS201411040125 Area Check A132 11/4/2014 14:15 11/4/2014 14:15 11/4/2014 14:15 11/4/2014 14:23 0.00 8.67 0 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS 14746 ALBERS WY NE (MapBook:1432), AURORA  (/AIRPORT RD NE)

SMS201411050196 SMS14021558 Domestic Disturbance A177 11/5/2014 18:47 11/5/2014 18:48 11/5/2014 19:02 11/5/2014 19:42 14.03 40.80 5 SMS01-AURORAT2 SMS 21053 FILBERT ST NE (MapBook:1532), AURORA 97002  (/OTTAWAY RD NE)

SMS201411060063 Traff Stop / Violation A113 11/6/2014 10:49 11/6/2014 10:49 11/6/2014 10:49 11/6/2014 10:59 0.02 10.02 0 SMS01-AURORAT6 SMS EHLEN RD NE, AURORA/AIRPORT RD NE, AURORA(MapBook:1432)

SMS201411090005 Officer Needs Cover 11/9/2014 0:29 11/9/2014 0:56 60410936.98 0 SMS01-AURORAT2 SMS 14682 OTTAWAY RD NE (MapBook:1532), @US POST OFFICE, AURORA  (HIGHWAY 99E NE/)

SMS201411100147 SMS14021897 Found Property A197 11/10/2014 15:46 11/10/2014 17:48 11/10/2014 19:06 78.00 5 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS 21028 HIGHWAY 99E NE (MapBook:1532), @AURORA LAW OFFICE BRENDAN ENRIGHT, AURORA  (BOBS AV NE/OTTAWAY RD NE)

SMS201411110088 Traff Stop / Violation A195 11/11/2014 14:19 11/11/2014 14:19 11/11/2014 14:19 11/11/2014 14:33 0.00 14.20 0 SMS01-AURORAT6 SMS 1ST ST NE, AURORA/MAIN ST NE, AURORA(MapBook:1432)

SMS201411120220 Traff Stop / Violation A198 11/12/2014 21:42 11/12/2014 21:42 11/12/2014 21:42 11/12/2014 21:54 0.00 11.87 0 SMS01-AURORAT6 SMS HIGHWAY 99E NE, AURORA/4TH ST NE, AURORA(MapBook:1532)

SMS201411150008 SMS14022145 Audible Alarm - Police A198 11/15/2014 4:42 11/15/2014 4:59 11/15/2014 5:26 11/15/2014 5:43 27.63 17.23 5 SMS01-AURORA 5 SMS 14971 1ST ST NE (MapBook:1432), @AURORA MILLS ARCHITECHTURAL SALVAGE, AURORA  (LIBERTY ST NE, HIGHWAY 99E NE/MAIN ST NE, EHLEN RD NE)

SMS201411180214 Citzen Contact / Assist A195 11/18/2014 16:30 11/18/2014 16:30 11/18/2014 16:30 11/18/2014 17:37 0.00 67.20 0 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS LIBERTY ST NE, AURORA/2ND ST NE, AURORA(MapBook:1432)

SMS201411200102 SMS14022496 Theft A106 11/20/2014 11:27 11/20/2014 11:38 11/20/2014 12:49 70.55 5 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS 20800 YOSEMITE ST NE (MapBook:1532), AURORA  (SMITH ROCK AV NE/SEAL ROCK AV NE)

SMS201411200251 SMS14022538 Domestic Disturbance A184 11/20/2014 22:14 11/20/2014 22:16 11/20/2014 22:39 11/20/2014 23:35 22.53 56.10 5 SMS01-AURORAT2 SMS 21053 FILBERT ST NE (MapBook:1532), AURORA  (/OTTAWAY RD NE)

SMS201411210160 SMS14022588 Theft A103 11/21/2014 19:12 11/21/2014 19:17 11/21/2014 19:28 10.83 5 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS ***WILL CALL****14680 ORCHARD AV NE (MapBook:1532), AURORA  (WALNUT ST NE/HIGHWAY 99E NE)

SMS201411220020 SMS14022615 Suspicious Activity A164 11/22/2014 4:47 11/22/2014 4:48 11/22/2014 5:05 17.63 5 SMS01-AURORA 3 SMS 4TH ST NE, AURORA/MAIN ST NE, AURORA(MapBook:1532)

SMS201411250113 Traff Stop / Violation A195 11/25/2014 13:00 11/25/2014 13:00 11/25/2014 13:00 11/25/2014 13:12 0.02 11.88 0 SMS01-AURORAT6 SMS MAIN ST NE, AURORA/OTTAWAY RD NE, AURORA(MapBook:1532)

SMS201411260096 Traff Stop / Violation A195 11/26/2014 12:26 11/26/2014 12:26 11/26/2014 12:26 11/26/2014 12:35 0.00 9.10 0 SMS01-AURORAT6 SMS 1ST ST NE, AURORA/MAIN ST NE, AURORA(MapBook:1432)

SMS201411260102 SMS14022892 Citzen Contact / Assist A195 11/26/2014 12:37 11/26/2014 12:37 11/26/2014 12:37 11/26/2014 13:04 0.02 27.45 5 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS 20853 FILBERT ST NE (MapBook:1532), AURORA  (WALNUT ST NE/HEMLOCK AV NE)

SMS201411280079 SMS14023029 Citzen Contact / Assist A115 11/28/2014 11:12 11/28/2014 11:12 11/28/2014 11:12 11/28/2014 11:13 0.00 0.22 5 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS 21420 MAIN ST NE  ( 21420 MAIN ST NE, @AURORA CITY HALL (MapBook:1532), AURORA )

SMS201411290059 Traff Stop / Violation A195 11/29/2014 14:13 11/29/2014 14:13 11/29/2014 14:13 11/29/2014 14:21 0.02 7.85 0 SMS01-AURORAT6 SMS MAIN ST NE, AURORA/BOBS AV NE, AURORA(MapBook:1532)

SMS201411290087 Traff Stop / Violation A195 11/29/2014 17:34 11/29/2014 17:34 11/29/2014 17:34 11/29/2014 17:46 0.02 12.45 0 SMS01-AURORAT6 SMS EHLEN RD NE, AURORA/AIRPORT RD NE, AURORA(MapBook:1432)

SMS201411300104 SMS14023160 Citzen Contact / Assist A197 11/30/2014 14:01 11/30/2014 14:01 11/30/2014 14:22 20.40 5 SMS01-AURORA 4 SMS 20814 WALNUT ST NE (MapBook:1532), AURORA  (FILBERT ST NE/ORCHARD AV NE)



Aurora Calls for Service November 2014

21028 HIGHWAY 99E NE (MapBook:1532), @AURORA LAW OFFICE BRENDAN ENRIGHT, AURORA  (BOBS AV NE/OTTAWAY RD NE)

14971 1ST ST NE (MapBook:1432), @AURORA MILLS ARCHITECHTURAL SALVAGE, AURORA  (LIBERTY ST NE, HIGHWAY 99E NE/MAIN ST NE, EHLEN RD NE)







 

 

City Recorder Report 

Memo 
To: City Council 

From: Kelly Richardson 

CC: None 

Date: 12/4/2014 

Re: Recorders Report Month of November 2014 report 

Activities and ongoing projects are as follows: 

 Ongoing secretarial duties for the City Council and Planning and Historic Review Board, along 
with attending the meetings once a month.  

 Working closely with Historic Review Board on guideline updates and changes.  

 Looking into grant opportunities to help with the updates needed 

 Attending Conference Committee And Records Committee Meetings 

 Attended two trainings regarding record retention  

 Records Request update  

 One pending for a canine group 

 Ongoing needs of the City, discussion items.  

 Updating Planning and Zoning Files and Forms/Checklists ONGOING 

 Working with HRB on Historic Review Guidelines Updates and Formatting. Ongoing 

 Updating water files and statistics to better reflect accurate information in Springbrook our utility 
billing and accounting software. Researching various accounts to reflect accurate information. 
Ongoing 

 Integrated the new software for the billing software and working out a few bugs in the system.   

 Working on Ordinance violations with Officer Marcellais.  

 Gather information for website updates 

1 



 

 Looking for new vendor for our WebLEDS access.  

 Page 2 
 



LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR PERMITS 

Date: 11/28/14 

Project: SLM Aurora Mills 

 

Dear Staff:  

       has/have reviewed the wireless site proposal, and 
hereby grant permission to apply for permits for this facility to Lexcom, as Verizon’s representative. This 
permission is for permit application only; any actual construction may not begin without a fully executed 
lease, all proper permits, and property owner’s approval of the construction schedule.  

In addition, the signature below grants permission for City staff to access or enter the subject property 
to examine the site as part of the permitting process.  

 

Property Owner (print):    Property Owner (signature):  Date: 

      

      

      

      

 



 

 

 

 

December 4, 2014 

 

City Council 

 

Councilors,  

I would like to thank you and the city for the opportunity to serve my community on the Historic Review 
Board for this past year. There has been some changes in my life and will need to step down from the 
board at this time.  

 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Bill Simon 















CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 
 



CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
CITY OFFICIALS 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 
MAYOR 
 
Bill Graupp         14629 Ehlen Road NE 
      Aurora, Oregon  97002 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Scott Brotherton      14955 4th Street NE 
      Aurora, Oregon  97002 
 
Jason Sahlin     21011 Main Street NE 
      Aurora, Oregon  97002 
 
Rick Vlcek     21340 Main Street NE 
      Aurora, Oregon  97002 
 
Kris Sallee     21544 Liberty Street NE 
      Aurora, Oregon  97002 
 
 
 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATION 
 
 

Kelly Richardson, City Recorder 
35296 S. Sawtelle Road 
Molalla, Oregon  97038 

 
Mary Lambert, Finance Officer 

11280 S Riggs Damm Road 
Canby, Oregon  97013 

 
Dennis E. Koho, City Attorney 

5305B River Road N. 
(P.O. Box 20790) 

Keizer, Oregon 97307 
 
 

 
MAILING ADDRESS 

 
21420 Main Street NE 
Aurora, Oregon  97002 

 



CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

Page 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
Independent Auditor’s Report 1-2 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 3-7 
Basic Financial Statements 
 Government-wide Financial Statements 
  Statement of Net Position (Modified Cash Basis) 8 
  Statement of Activities (Modified Cash Basis) 9 
 Fund Financial Statements 
  Balance Sheet (Modified Cash Basis) - Governmental Funds 10 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Modified Cash Basis) -  
    Governmental Funds 11 
  Statement of Fund Net Position (Modified Cash Basis) - Enterprise Funds 12 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Net Position (Modified Cash Basis) -  
    Enterprise Funds   13 
 Notes to Basic Financial Statements 14-25 
Supplemental Information 
 Governmental Funds – Statements and Schedules 
  Combining Balance Sheet (Modified Cash Basis) – Nonmajor Funds 26 
  Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances  
   (Modified Cash Basis) – Nonmajor Funds 27 
  Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (Modified Cash Basis) –  
    Budget and Actual 
   General Fund    28 
   Street/Storm Operating Fund 29 
   City Hall Building Fund 30 
   Park SDC Fund   31 
   Park Reserve Fund 32 
   Street/Storm SDC Fund 33 
   Street/Storm Reserve Fund 34 
   SPWF Project Maintenance Fund 35 
 Enterprise Funds - Statements and Schedules 
  Combining Statement of Fund Net Position (Modified Cash Basis) – Nonmajor Funds 36 
  Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position  
   (Modified Cash Basis) – Nonmajor Funds 37 
  Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Modified Cash Basis) - 
    Budget and Actual 
   Water Fund     38 
   Sewer Fund     39 
   G.O. Wastewater Bond Fund 40 
   Water SDC Fund  41 
   Water Reserve Fund 42 
   Sewer SDC Fund  43 
   Sewer Reserve Fund 44 
 Other Schedules 
  Schedule of Property Tax Transactions 45 
   
COMPLIANCE SECTION 
 Independent Auditor’s Report Required by Oregon State Regulations 46-47 

 



 
475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, Oregon 97301 

(503) 581-7788 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Council Members 
City of Aurora 
21420 Main Street NE 
Aurora, Oregon  97002 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Aurora, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the modified cash basis of accounting described in the notes to the financial statements; this includes 
determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial 
statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance 
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these modified cash basis financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
  



 
 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the modified cash basis financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective modified cash basis financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Aurora, as of June 30, 2014, and the 
respective changes in modified cash basis financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the 
basis of accounting described in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
We draw attention to the notes of the financial statements that describes the basis of accounting.  The financial 
statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our opinions are not modified with 
respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Report on Supplemental and Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements as a whole that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. Management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary 
comparison information, combining nonmajor fund financial statements, and other schedules are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The supplemental information as listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole on the basis of accounting described in notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management's discussion and analysis has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on such 
information. 
 
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report 
dated December 3, 2014, on our consideration of the City's compliance with certain provisions of laws and 
regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules.   The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to 
provide an opinion on compliance. 
 
          GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C. 
          CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
 
          By:   
           Thomas E. Glogau, A Shareholder 
           December 3, 2014 



 
- 3 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2014 

 
As management of the City of Aurora, we offer readers of the financial statements this narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

2014 2013 change

Net position 1,299,683$         1,021,158$         278,525$            

Change in net position 278,525             22,590               255,935              

Governmental net position 725,610             605,884             119,726              

Proprietary net position 574,073             415,274             158,799              

Change in governmental net position 119,726               84,086                 35,640                 

Change in proprietary net position 158,799               (61,496)               220,295               

June 30,

 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Aurora’s basic financial 
statements.  The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial 
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report also contains 
supplementary and other information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  These 
statements include: 
 
The Statement of Net Position (Modified Cash Basis).  This presents information on the assets and liabilities of the 
City as of the date on the statement.  Net position is what remains after the liabilities have been paid or otherwise 
satisfied.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities (Modified Cash Basis).  The statement of activities presents information showing how 
the net position of the City changed over the most recent fiscal year by tracking revenues, expenditures and other 
transactions that increase or reduce net position. 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, the City’s activities are shown as governmental and business-type 
activities.  Governmental activities include all basic City government functions, such as administration, city hall, 
legal, parks, streets and police.  These activities are primarily financed through property taxes and other 
intergovernmental activities.  Business-type activities are those which are primarily financed through charges to 
customers, and include water and sewer operations. 



 
- 4 - 

Fund financial statements.  The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s 
funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds – not the City of Aurora as a whole.  A fund is a grouping 
of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities 
or objectives.  The City of Aurora, like state and other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided into 
two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  Because the focus of governmental funds is 
narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful in obtaining an understanding of each 
fund’s activity. 
 
Proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds are used to account for funds which are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  Proprietary funds whose 
primary user is the public are known as enterprise funds.  
 
Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.   
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain other supplemental information, including the budgetary comparison schedules, the combining non-major 
fund financial statements, and other schedules. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Cash and cash equivalents 725,610$       574,073$       1,299,683$    605,884$       415,274$       1,021,158$    

Liabilities -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Net Position:
Restricted 240,426         113,352         353,778         199,462         68,513           267,975         
Unrestricted 485,184         460,721         945,905         406,422         346,761         753,183         

Total Net Position 725,610$       574,073$       1,299,683$    605,884$       415,274$       1,021,158$    

2014 2013

Statements of Net Position (modified cash basis)
June 30,

 
Statement of Net Position (modified cash basis).  The statement of net position (modified cash basis) is provided 
on a comparative basis.  As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position.  In the case of the City of Aurora, assets exceeded liabilities by $1,299,683 as of June 30, 2014. 
 
Restricted net position represents sources that are subject to external restrictions on their use, such as debt service 
or capital projects. 
 
Unrestricted net position is available for general operations of the City. 
 



 
- 5 - 

Business- Business-
Governmental type Governmental type

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Revenues

Program revenues
Charges for service 117,866$       562,347$    680,213$    125,618$       551,318$    $    676,936 
Operating grants 53,565           -                  53,565        50,974           -                          50,974 
Capital grants 18,215           30,300        48,515        6,501             15,150                21,651 

General revenues
Taxes and assessments 229,363         317,784      547,147      228,037         304,587            532,624 
Franchise taxes 59,231           -                  59,231        58,902           -                          58,902 
Intergovernmental 22,872           -                  22,872        21,874           -                          21,874 
Miscellaneous 36,717           5,655          42,372        39,780           2,892                  42,672 

Total revenues 563,626         916,086      1,479,712             531,686        873,947    1,405,633 

Expenses
General government 90,552           -                          90,552 100,935       -                        100,935 
Public safety 176,701         -                        176,701 150,497       -                        150,497 
Highways and streets 67,921           -                          67,921 85,855         -                          85,855 
Community development 116,726         -                        116,726 110,313       -                        110,313 
Water -                     233,174            233,174 -                   357,250            357,250 
Sewer -                     516,113            516,113 -                   578,193            578,193 

Total expenses 451,900         749,287          1,201,187           447,600        935,443    1,383,043 

Change in net position           119,726        158,799        278,525             84,086        (61,496)         22,590 

Net position, beginning of year           605,884       415,274    1,021,158          521,798        476,770       998,568 

Net position, end of year 725,610$       574,073$   1,299,683$ 605,884$      415,274$    1,021,158$

2014 2013

Year ended June 30,
Statements of Activities (modified cash basis)

 
 
Statement of Activities (modified cash basis).  During the current fiscal year, the City’s total net position increased 
by $278,525 to $1,299,683 from $1,021,158 at the beginning of the year.  The key elements of the change in the 
City’s net position for the year ended June 30, 2014 are as follows: 
 
Governmental activities - The City's net position increased by $119,726 from governmental activities.  This 
increase is due mainly to an increase in capital grants and property taxes and a decrease in general government, 
public safety and highways and streets expenditures. 
 
Business type activities - The City's net position increased by $158,799 from business type activities.  This increase 
is due mainly to an increase in charges for services, taxes and capital grants, and a decrease in water and sewer 
expenses.   
 
Financial Analysis of the City of Aurora’s Government Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements.   



 
- 6 - 

Governmental funds.  The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on relatively short-
term cash flow and funding for future basic services.  Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing 
requirements.  In particular, fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available 
for spending at the end of a fiscal year. 
 
As of June 30, 2014, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $725,610 an 
increase of $119,726 over the prior year. 
 
Business-type funds.  The business-type funds account for the City’s water and sewer operations.  For the year 
ended June 30, 2014, operating revenues exceeded operating expenses by $158,799. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The governing body approved one appropriation transfer, which made changes to the General Fund budget for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.   
 
Significant Fund Transactions 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements.  The following information details significant fund transactions during the year. 
 
Major Governmental Funds: 

 General: the General fund had an increase in fund balance of $44,833 during this year, which was primarily 
due to an increase in license and permits revenue, a decrease in fines and forfeitures revenues, and a 
decrease in administrative expenditures and personal services, and an increase in contracted police services 
from the prior year. 

 Street/Storm: the Street/Storm Fund had an increase in fund balance of $49,655 during this year, which was 
primarily due to a sale of assets along with a decrease in capital outlay. 

 City Hall Building: the City Hall Building Fund had an increase in fund balance of $2,353 during the year, 
which was due to collections of revenues but no expenditures. 

 
Major Proprietary Funds: 

 Water: the Water Fund had an increase in net position of $29,296 during the year, which was primarily due 
to a decrease in capital outlay compared to the prior year.  

 Sewer: the Sewer Fund had an increase in net position of $25,991  during the year, which was primarily 
due to a decrease in capital outlay.  

 G.O. Wastewater Bond: the Wastewater Bond Fund had an increase in net position of $12,766 during the 
year, which was due to an increase in taxes and assessments revenues. 

 
Debt Administration 
 
The City had total debt outstanding of $3,022,337 at the end of the current fiscal year. 
 
During the current fiscal year, the City’s total debt decreased by $196,914 (7%). 
 
State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 3 percent of its total 
assessed valuation.  The assessed valuation of the City of Aurora is $93,341,006 for the current year, therefore, the 
current debt limitation is $2,800,230 for the City of Aurora. The City’s general obligation debt was $2,735,000 at 
June 30, 2014. 
 



 
- 7 - 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

General obligation bonds -$                -$                2,735,000$ 2,920,000$ 2,735,000$ 2,920,000$ 
Loans -                  -                  287,337      299,251      287,337      299,251      

Total -$                -$                3,022,337$ 3,219,251$ 3,022,337$ 3,219,251$ 

City of Aurora
Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

 
 
Additional information on the City of Aurora’s long-term debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial 
statements of this report. 
 
Economic Factors and the Next Year’s Budget 
 
The City of Aurora’s Budget Committee considered all the following factors while preparing the City budget for 
the 2014-15 fiscal year: 
 

a. Prior history of revenues and expenditures 
b. Capital projects in the water and sewer funds 
c. Expected property tax revenues 

 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to present the user (citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors) with a general 
overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability.  Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to: 
   
  City Recorder 
  City of Aurora 
  21420 Main Street NE 
  Aurora, Oregon 97002



 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 8 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (MODIFIED CASH BASIS)  
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 725,610$            574,073$            1,299,683$         

LIABILITIES -                          -                          -                         

NET POSITION
Restricted for:

Customer deposits -                          6,075                  6,075                  
Debt service -                          33,176                33,176                
Capital outlay 67,531                74,101                141,632              
Streets 172,895              -                          172,895              

Unrestricted 485,184              460,721              945,905              

Total Net Position 725,610$            574,073$            1,299,683$         

 
 



 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Fees, Fines Operating Capital 
and Charges Grants and Grants and

Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS

Governmental activities:
General government 90,552$           7,277$             -$                     -$                     
Public safety 176,701           25,355             -                       -                       
Highways and streets 67,921             36,585             53,565             11,600             
Community development 116,726           48,649             -                       6,615               

Total Governmental activities 451,900           117,866           53,565             18,215             

Business-type activities:
Water 233,174           289,442           -                       22,172             
Sewer 516,113           272,905           -                       8,128               

Total Business-type activities 749,287           562,347           -                       30,300             

Total Activities 1,201,187$      680,213$         53,565$           48,515$           

General Revenues:
Property taxes
Franchise taxes
Intergovernmental
Proceeds from disposition of assets
Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Transfers

Change in net position

Net Position - beginning of year

Net Position - end of year

Program Revenues

 
 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 9 - 

 
 
 
 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

(83,275)$          -$                     (83,275)$          
(151,346)          -                       (151,346)          

33,829             -                       33,829             
(61,462)            -                       (61,462)            

(262,254)          -                       (262,254)          

-                       78,440             78,440             
-                       (235,080)          (235,080)          

-                       (156,640)          (156,640)          

(262,254)          (156,640)          (418,894)          

229,363           317,784           547,147           
59,231             -                       59,231             
22,872             -                       22,872             
25,797 -                       25,797             
36,717             5,655               42,372             

373,980           323,439           697,419           

8,000               (8,000)              -                      

119,726           158,799           278,525           

605,884           415,274           1,021,158        

725,610$         574,073$         1,299,683$      

and Changes in Net Position
Net (Expenses) Revenues 

 
 



 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
BALANCE SHEET (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Special Revenue Capital Projects

General
Street / Storm 

Operating
City Hall 
Building

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 334,354$          159,055$           118,128$          

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities: -$                      -$                       -$                      

Fund Balance:
Restricted for:

Capital outlay -                       -                        -                        
Streets -                       159,055            -                        

Committed to:
Capital outlay -                       -                        118,128            

Unassigned 334,354           -                        -                        

Total Fund Balance 334,354           159,055            118,128            

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 334,354$          159,055$           118,128$          

 
 
 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 10 - 

 
 
 
 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total

114,073$           725,610$           

-$                       -$                       

67,531               67,531               
13,840               172,895             

32,702               150,830             
-                         334,354             

114,073             725,610             

114,073$           725,610$           

 
 



 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES –  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
` Special Revenue Capital Projects

General
Street / Storm 

Operating
City Hall 
Building

REVENUES
Taxes and assessments 229,363$             -$                         -$                        
Fines and forfeitures 25,355                -                          -                          
Licenses and permits 113,409              -                          1,748                   
Charges for services -                         22,478                 -                          
Intergovernmental 22,872                53,565                 -                          
Miscellaneous 37,813                23,379                 605                      

Total Revenues 428,812              99,422                 2,353                   

EXPENDITURES
General government 90,552                -                          -                          
Public safety 176,701              -                          -                          
Highways and streets -                         59,512                 -                          
Community development 116,726              -                          -                          
Capital outlay -                         255                      -                          

Total Expenditures 383,979              59,767                 -                          

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 44,833                  39,655                  2,353                    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                         10,000                 -                          
Transfers out -                         -                          -                          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                         10,000                 -                          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 44,833                49,655                 2,353                   

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 289,521              109,400              115,775               

FUND BALANCE, end of year 334,354$             159,055$             118,128$             

 
 

  



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 11 - 

 
 
 
 
 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total

737$                     230,100$              
-                           25,355                  

18,215                  133,372                
13,370                  35,848                  

-                           76,437                  
717                       62,514                  

33,039                  563,626                

-                           90,552                  
-                           176,701                
-                           59,512                  
-                           116,726                

8,154                    8,409                    

8,154                    451,900                

24,885                  111,726                

8,000                    18,000                  
(10,000)                (10,000)                

(2,000)                  8,000                    

22,885                  119,726                

91,188                  605,884                

114,073$              725,610$              

 
 
 



 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Water Sewer
G.O. Wastewater 

Bond Fund
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 216,959$             177,718$             33,176$               

LIABILITIES -                           -                           -                           

NET POSITION:
Restricted for:

Customer deposits 6,075                   -                           -                           
Debt service -                           -                           33,176                 
Construction -                           -                           -                           

Unrestricted 210,884               177,718               -                           

Total Net Position 216,959$             177,718$             33,176$               

 
 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 12 - 

 
 
 
 

Other Business-
type Funds Total

146,220$             574,073$             

-                           -                           

-                           6,075                   
-                           33,176                 

74,101                 74,101                 
72,119                 460,721               

146,220$             574,073$             

 
 



 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Water Sewer
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 289,442$                  272,905$                  
Miscellaneous 50                             2,525                        

Total Operating Revenues 289,492                     275,430                     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 89,626                     82,750                      
Materials and services 103,572                   125,961                    

Total Operating Expenses 193,198                     208,711                     

OPERATING INCOME 96,294                       66,719                       

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Noncapital Financing Revenues (Expenses)

Transfers in -                                -                                
Transfers out (28,000)                    (40,000)                     
Taxes and assessments -                                -                                

Total Noncapital Financing Revenues (Expenses) (28,000)                    (40,000)                     

Capital Financing Revenues (Expenses)
Capital contributions -                                -                                
Capital outlay (19,084)                    (1,589)                       
Debt service

Principal (11,914)                    -                                
Interest (8,978)                      -                                

Total Capital Financing Revenues (Expenses) (39,976)                      (1,589)                        

Investing Revenues 978                           861                           

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (66,998)                    (40,728)                     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 29,296                       25,991                       

NET POSITION, beginning of year 187,663                   151,727                    

NET POSITION, end of year 216,959$                   177,718$                   

 
 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
- 13 - 

 
 
 
 

 
G.O. Wastewater 

Bond Fund
Other Business-

type Funds Total

-$                          -$                          562,347$             
-                            -                            2,575                   

-                            -                            564,922                

-                            -                            172,376               
-                            -                            229,533               

-                            -                            401,909                

-                            -                            163,013                

-                            60,000                  60,000                 
-                            -                            (68,000)                

317,784                -                            317,784               

317,784                60,000                  309,784               

-                            30,300                  30,300                 
-                            -                            (20,673)                

(185,000)               -                            (196,914)              
(120,813)               -                            (129,791)              

(305,813)               30,300                  (317,078)               

795                       446                       3,080                   

12,766                  90,746                  (4,214)                  

12,766                  90,746                  158,799                

20,410                  55,474                  415,274               

33,176$                146,220$              574,073$              

 
 



 
- 14 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The City of Aurora, Oregon is governed by an elected mayor and four council members who comprise the City 
Council.  The City Council exercises supervisory responsibilities over City operations, but day-to-day management 
control is the responsibility of a city recorder.  All significant activities and organizations for which the City is 
financially accountable are included in the basic financial statements. 
 
There are certain governmental agencies and various service districts which provide services within the City.  These 
agencies have independently elected governing boards and the City is not financially accountable for these 
organizations.  Therefore, financial information for these agencies is not included in the accompanying basic 
financial statements. 
 
As discussed further under Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, these financial statements are presented 
on a modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). These modified cash basis financial statements generally meet the presentation and disclosure 
requirements applicable to GAAP, in substance, but are limited to the elements presented in the financial statements 
and the constraints of the measurement and recognition criteria of the modified cash basis of accounting. 
 

Basic Financial Statements 
 
Basic financial statements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial level.  Both levels of 
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.  Governmental activities, which 
are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
Government-wide financial statements display information about the City as a whole.  For the most part, the 
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  These statements focus on the sustainability 
of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal 
period.  These aggregated statements consist of the Statement of Net Position (modified cash basis) and the 
Statement of Activities (modified cash basis). 
 
The Statement of Net Position (modified cash basis) presents the assets and liabilities of the City. Net position, 
representing assets less liabilities, is shown in two components: restricted for special purposes, amounts which 
must be spent in accordance with legal restrictions; and unrestricted, the amount available for ongoing City 
activities. 
 
The Statement of Activities (modified cash basis) demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment.  Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 
 
Fund financial statements display information at the individual fund level.  Each fund is considered to be a 
separate accounting entity.  Funds are classified and summarized as governmental, proprietary or fiduciary.  
Currently, the City has governmental funds (general, special revenue, and capital projects) and proprietary type 
funds (enterprise).  Major individual governmental funds and proprietary funds are reported as separate columns 
in the fund financial statements.    



 
- 15 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures 
/ expenses.  The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America set forth minimum criteria (percentage 
of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures / expenses of either fund category or the government and 
enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.   

 
The City reports the following governmental funds as major funds: 

 
General Fund 
 
This fund accounts for the basic governmental financial operations of the City.  Principal sources of revenues 
are property taxes, licenses and permits, franchise taxes and State shared revenues.  Primary expenditures are 
for administration, police protection, parks, community development and municipal court. 
 
Street/Storm Operating Fund 
 
Gas tax apportionments received from the State are recorded in this fund.  Expenditures are for road 
construction and maintenance. 
 
City Hall Building Fund 
 
This fund accounts for monies set aside by the City for the renovation of the City Hall building. 

 
The following governmental funds are considered non-major: 

 
Park SDC Fund 
 
This fund was established to account for revenues from park system development charges and to provide for 
future parks capital improvement projects. 
 
Park Reserve Fund 
 
This fund accounts for monies set aside by the City Council and designated for park projects. 
 
Street/Storm SDC Fund 
 
This fund was established to account for revenues from street/storm system development charges and to 
provide for future capital improvements to the street and storm system. 

 
Street/Storm Reserve Fund 
 
This fund was established to account for revenues set aside to provide for future street/storm capital 
improvement projects. 



 
- 16 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Basis of Presentation (continued) 

 
SPWF Project Maintenance Fund 
 
This fund was established to account for monies to be used for future payments of the local improvement 
district loan.  Since the loan has been paid off, the money is used for capital outlay related to public works. 

 
Proprietary funds are used to account for the acquisition, operation, maintenance and debt service of the sewer 
and water systems. These funds are entirely or predominantly self-supported through user charges to customers. 
 
The City reports the following proprietary funds as major funds. 
 

Water Fund 
 
Financial activities of the City’s water utility are recorded in this fund.  Revenues consist primarily of user 
charges.  Expenditures are primarily for operation of the utility and for acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment. 
 
Sewer Fund 
 
Financial activities of the City’s sewer utility are recorded in this fund.  Revenues consist primarily of user 
charges.  Expenses are primarily for operation of the utility and for acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment. 
 
General Obligation Wastewater Bond Fund 
 
This fund was established to account for revenues set aside for debt service on the general obligation bond and 
loan repayments.  Taxes and interfund transfers are the primary revenues.  Payments are for debt service. 
 

The following proprietary funds are considered non-major. 
 

Water SDC Fund 
 
This fund was established to account for revenues from water system development charges and to provide for 
future capital improvements to the water system. 
 
Water Reserve Fund 
 
This fund is used to accumulate resources for major repairs and improvements to the water system through 
transfers from other funds. 
 
Sewer SDC Fund 
 
This fund was established to account for revenues from sewer system development charges and to provide for 
future capital improvements to the sewer system. 



 
- 17 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
Basis of Presentation (continued) 

 
Sewer Reserve Fund 
 
This fund accumulates resources for major repairs and improvements to the sewer system through transfers 
from other funds. 
 

Fund Balance 
 
In governmental funds, the City’s policy is to first apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then 
to other less-restrictive classifications - committed and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund 
balances. 

 
Fund balance is reported as non-spendable when the resources cannot be spent because they are either in a legally 
or contractually required to be maintained intact or non-spendable form.  Resources in non-spendable form 
include inventories, pre-paids and deposits, and assets held for resale. 
 
Fund balance is reported as restricted when the constraints placed on the use of resources are either: (a) externally 
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
Fund balance is reported as committed when the City Council takes formal action that places specific constraints 
on how the resources may be used.  The City Council can modify or rescind the commitment at any time through 
taking a similar formal action. 
 
Resources that are constrained by the City’s intent to use them for a specific purpose, but are neither restricted 
nor committed, are reported as assigned fund balance.  Intent is expressed when the City Council approves which 
resources should be “reserved” during the adoption of the annual budget.  The City’s Finance Officer uses that 
information to determine whether those resources should be classified as assigned or unassigned for presentation 
in the City’s Annual Financial Report. 
 
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund.  This classification represents fund 
balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned within the General Fund.  This classification is also 
used to report any negative fund balance amounts in other governmental funds.  
 
Definitions of Governmental Fund Types 
 
The General Fund is used to account for the basic operations of the City, which include general government, 
public safety, highways and streets, and community development. 
 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.  The term 
“proceeds of specific revenues sources” means that the revenue sources for the fund must be from restricted or 
committed sources, specifically that a substantial portion of the revenue must be from these sources and be 
expended in accordance with those requirements. 
 
Capital Projects Funds are utilized to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction 
of capital equipment and facilities. 



 
- 18 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

 
Measurement focus is a term used to describe what transactions or events are recorded within the various 
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when and how transactions or events are recorded, regardless 
of the measurement focus applied.  
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position (Modified Cash Basis) and Statement of Activities (Modified 
Cash Basis), both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic resource 
measurement focus, within the limitations of the modified cash basis of accounting, as defined below. 
 
In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus or the economic resources 
measurement focus is applied to the modified cash basis of accounting, is used as appropriate: 
 

a. All governmental funds utilize a current financial resources measurement focus within the limitations of the 
modified cash basis of accounting. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on 
their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial 
resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable 
financial resources at the end of the period. 

b. The proprietary funds utilize an economic resource measurement focus within the limitations of the 
modified cash basis of accounting. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the 
determination of operating income, change in net position (or cost recovery), net financial position, and 
cash flows. All assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows (whether current or noncurrent or 
financial or nonfinancial) associated with their activities are generally reported within the limitations of the 
modified cash basis of accounting. 

 
The financial statements are presented on a modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting 
other than GAAP as established by GASB. This basis of accounting involves modifications to the cash basis of 
accounting to report in the statements of net position or balance sheets cash transactions or events that provide a 
benefit or result in an obligation that covers a period greater than the period in which the cash transaction or event 
occurred. Such reported balances include: 
 

1. Interfund receivables and payables that are temporary borrowing and result from transactions involving 
cash or cash equivalents are recognized. 

2. Assets that normally convert to cash or cash equivalents (e.g., certificates of deposit, external cash pools, 
and marketable investments) that arise from transactions and events involving cash or cash equivalents are 
recognized. 

3. Liabilities for cash (or cash equivalents) held on behalf of others or held in escrow are recognized. 
 

The modified cash basis of accounting differs from GAAP primarily because certain assets and their related 
revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services not yet collected and other 
accrued revenue and receivables) and certain liabilities and their related expenses or expenditures (such as 
accounts payable and expenses for goods and services received but not yet paid and other accrued expenses and 
liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements. In addition, other economic assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows that do not arise from a cash transaction or event are not reported, and the 
measurement of reported assets and liabilities does not involve adjustment to fair value.  Additionally, capital 
assets such as property and equipment, and long-term liabilities such as debt are only reported in the notes to the 
financial statements. 



 
- 19 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 

If the City utilized the basis of accounting recognized as generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
fund financial statements for the governmental funds would use the modified accrual basis of accounting, and the 
fund financial statements for the enterprise funds would use the accrual basis of accounting. All government-wide 
financial statements would be presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
The City’s policy, although not in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, is acceptable under Oregon Law (ORS 294.333), which leaves the selection of the method of 
accounting to the discretion of the municipal corporation.   
 
Enterprise funds distinguish between operating revenues and expenses and non-operating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses result from providing services to customers in connection with ongoing utility operations.  
The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for service.  Operating expenses include payroll and 
related costs, materials and supplies, and capital outlay.  All revenues not considered operating are reported as 
non-operating items. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The City maintains cash and cash equivalents in a common pool that is available for use by all funds.  Each fund 
type’s portion of this pool is displayed as cash and cash equivalents. The City considers cash on hand, demand 
deposits and savings accounts, and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less from 
the date of acquisition to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Oregon Revised Statutes authorize the City to invest in certificates of deposit, savings accounts, bank repurchase 
agreements, bankers’ acceptances, general obligations of U.S. Government and its agencies, certain bonded 
obligations of Oregon municipalities, and the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool, among 
others.   
 
For the purpose of financial reporting, cash and cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts and 
certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less. 
 
Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. 

 
Property Taxes 
 
Property taxes are levied by the County Assessor and collected by the County Tax Collector.  The taxes are levied 
and become a lien as of July 1.  They may be paid in three installments payable in equal payments due November 
15, February 15 and May 15.  The City’s property tax collection records show that most of the property taxes due 
are collected during the year of levy and delinquent taxes are collected in the next few years. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The City does not maintain historical cost or depreciation records for capital assets. Therefore, capital assets are 
not reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position or the enterprise funds statements of Fund Net 
Position.  



 
- 20 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
Long-term debt is presented only in the notes to the financial statements.  Payments of principal and interest are 
recorded as expenditures / expenses when paid. 

 
Accrued Compensated Absences 
 
Accumulated unpaid vacation pay is not accrued.  Earned but unpaid sick pay is recorded as an expenditure / 
expense when paid.   

 
Budget and Budgetary Accounting 
 
The City adopts the budget on an object basis; therefore, expenditures of a specific object within a fund may not 
legally exceed that object’s appropriations.  The City Council may amend the budget to expend unforeseen 
revenues by supplemental appropriations.  All supplemental appropriations are included in the budget comparison 
statements.  Appropriations lapse at year end and may not be carried over.  The City does not use encumbrance 
accounting. 

 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and reported amounts of 
revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following at June 30, 2014: 

 

Cash
Cash on hand $ 400               $ 400              
Deposits with financial institutions 138,083        138,083       
Local Government Investment Pool 1,161,200    1,161,200    

$ 1,299,683    $ 1,299,683    

Carrying 
Value

Fair
Value

 
 Deposits 

 
The City's deposits with various financial institutions had a book value of $138,083 a bank value of $176,677 as 
of June 30, 2014.  The difference is due to transactions in process.  Bank deposits are secured to legal limits by 
federal deposit insurance.  The remaining amount is secured in accordance with ORS 295 under a collateral 
program administered by the Oregon State Treasurer. 

  



 
- 21 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 

 
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 
 
This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned.  The Federal 
Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides insurance for the City's deposits with financial institutions for 
up to $250,000 for the aggregate of all demand deposits and the aggregate of all time deposit and savings 
accounts at each institution.  Deposits in excess of FDIC coverage are with institutions participating in the 
Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP).  The PFCP is a shared liability structure for participating 
bank depositories, better protecting public funds though still not guaranteeing that all funds are 100% protected.  
Barring any exceptions, a bank depository is required to pledge collateral valued at least 10% of their quarter-end 
public fund deposits if they are well capitalized, 25% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are 
adequately capitalized, or 110% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are undercapitalized or assigned 
to pledge 110% by the Office of the State Treasurer.  In the event of a bank failure, the entire pool of collateral 
pledged by all qualified Oregon public funds bank depositories is available to repay deposits of public funds of 
government entities.  As of June 30, 2014 all of the City’s bank balances were covered by FDIC insurance. 

 
Local Government Investment Pool 

 
The State Treasurer of the State of Oregon maintains the Oregon Short-Term Fund, of which the Local 
Government Investment Pool is part.  Participation by local governments is voluntary.  The State of Oregon 
investment policies are governed by statute and the Oregon Investment Council.  In accordance with Oregon 
Statutes, the investment funds are invested as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care, skill and 
caution.  The Oregon Short-Term Fund is the LGIP for local governments and was established by the State 
Treasurer.  It was created to meet the financial and administrative responsibilities of federal arbitrage regulations.  
 
The investments are regulated by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon Investment 
Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895).  At June 30, 2014, the fair value of the position in the Oregon State 
Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Pool was approximately equal to the value of the pool shares.  The 
investment in the Oregon Short-Term Fund is not subject to risk evaluation. The LGIP is not rated for credit 
quality.  
 
Separate financial statements for the Oregon Short-Term Fund are available from the Oregon State Treasurer. 

 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair value of its investments 
by limiting its investments the LGIP. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk - Investments 
 
For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to 
recover the value of its investments or collateralized securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The 
City's investment policy limits the types of investments that may be held and does not allow securities to be held 
by the counterparty. 
 
The LGIP is administered by the Oregon State Treasury with the advice of other state agencies and is not 
registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.  The LGIP is an open-ended no-load diversified 
portfolio offered to any agency, political subdivision, or public corporation of the state that by law is made the 
custodian of, or has control of any fund.  The LGIP is commingled with the State's short-term funds.  In seeking 
to best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon Legislature established the Oregon Short Term Fund 



 
- 22 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 

 
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments (Continued) 
 
Board, which has established diversification percentages and specifies the types and maturities of the 
investments.   
 
The purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the management and investment of the LGIP.  
These investments within the LGIP must be invested and managed as a prudent investor would, exercising 
reasonable care, skill and caution.  Professional standards indicate that the investments in external investment 
pools are not subject to custodial risk because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book 
entry form.  Nevertheless, management does not believe that there is any substantial custodial risk related to 
investments in the LGIP. 

 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
As a result of the use of the modified cash basis of accounting in this report, obligations related to long term debt 
and other obligations are not reported as liabilities in the financial statements. Long-term debt transactions for the 
year were as follows: 
 

Business-type activities
General Obligation Bonds 
issued May 2009, semi-annual 
payments through 2024 with 
interest from 2.5% to 4.5% $ 3,530,000  $ 2,920,000 $ -               $ (185,000)   $ 2,735,000  $ 195,000

Safe Drinking Water Revolving 
Loan Fund Award Contract Loan 
issued through OECDD issued 
2011 with interest and principal
payments of $20,892 through 
2031 with interest at 3.0% 310,818     299,251   -               (11,914)     287,337     12,272  

$ 3,840,818  $ 3,219,251 $ -               $ (196,914)   $ 3,022,337  $ 207,272

One Year2014During YearIssued

Outstanding Outstanding Due 
July 1, WithinJune 30,

Matured/
RedeemedOriginal 

Issue 2013

 
 
Debt payments on the general obligation bonds are made from the G.O. Wastewater Bond Fund. 
 
 



 
- 23 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
Future debt service requirements are as follows:   
 

2015 $ 207,272       $ 123,420       $ 330,692        
2016 227,640       116,227       343,867        
2017 248,019       107,248       355,267        
2018 263,410       97,457         360,867        
2019 283,812       87,055         370,867        

2020-2024 1,645,530    239,629       1,885,159     
2025-2029 87,559         16,900         104,459        
2030-2032 59,095         3,579           62,674          

$ 3,022,337    $ 791,515       $ 3,813,852     

Total
Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest

 
 
PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description 
 
The City contributes to two pension plans administered by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS). The Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF) applies to the City’s contribution for qualifying 
employees who were hired before August 29, 2003, and is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan. The City participates in the state and local government rate pool (SLGRP). The Oregon Public Service 
Retirement Plan (OPSRP) is a hybrid successor plan to the OPERF and consists of two programs: The Pension 
Program, the defined benefit portion of the plan, applies to qualifying City employees hired after August 29, 2003, 
and to inactive employees who return to employment following a six-month or greater break in service. Benefits are 
calculated by a formula for members who attain normal retirement age. The formula takes into account final 
average salary and years of service. Beginning January 1, 2004, all PERS member contributions go into the 
Individual Account Program (IAP), the defined contribution portion of the plan. PERS members retain their 
existing PERS accounts, but any future member contributions are deposited into the member's IAP, not the 
member's PERS account. 
 
Both PERS plans provide retirement and disability benefits, post-employment healthcare benefits, annual cost-of-
living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS is administered under Oregon 
Revised Statute Chapter 238, which establishes the Public Employees Retirement Board as the governing body of 
PERS. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to PERS, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR, 97281-
3700 or by calling 503-598-7377. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Members of PERS are required to contribute 6.00% of their salary covered under the plan, which is invested in the 
OPSRP Individual Account Program. The City is required by ORS 238.225 to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate for the qualifying employees under the OPERF plan, and a general service rate and a police/fire 
rate for the qualifying employees under the OPSRP plan. The OPERF and the OPSRP rates in effect for the year 
ended June 30, 2014 were 7.76%, 6.64%, and 9.37%, respectively. The contribution requirements for plan members 
are established by ORS Chapter 238 and may be amended by an act of the Oregon Legislature. 



 
- 24 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Annual Pension Cost 
 
The City’s contribution to PERS for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012, 2013, and 2014 were $18,170, $19,803, 
and $12,925 respectively, which equaled the required contributions for the years. 
 
 
TRANSFERS 
 

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out

Street/Storm Operating 10,000$                -$                          
Street/Storm SDC -                            10,000                  
SPWF Maintenance 8,000                     -                             
Water -                            28,000                  
Sewer -                             40,000                   
Sewer Reserve 40,000                   -                             
Water Reserve 20,000                 -                            

78,000$                78,000$                

 
Transfers are used to (1) move resources from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund 
that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move revenues restricted to debt service from the funds 
collecting the revenues to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted 
revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with 
budgetary authorizations. 
 
 
CONTINGENCIES 
 
The City purchases commercial insurance to cover all commonly insurable risks, which includes property damage, 
liability and employee bonds.  Most policies carry a small deductible amount.  No insurance claims settled in each 
of the prior three years have exceeded policy coverage. 
 
 
NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
GASB Statement No. 65 “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.”  The statement establishes 
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of 
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of 
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. The statement 
was implemented in the current year. 
 
GASB Statement No. 70 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Financial Guarantees.” The 
objective of the statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by State and local governments that 
extend and receive non-exchange financial guarantees. The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2013. 
  



 
- 25 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS (Continued) 
 
The City will implement new GASB pronouncements no later than the required fiscal year. Management has not 
determined the effect on the financial statements from implementing any of the pronouncements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 68 “Accounting and Reporting for Pension Plans—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 
27.” The statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements related to pensions provided by 
governments.  The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. 
 
GASB Statement No. 69 “Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations.” The statement 
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of 
government operations. The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013. 
 
GASB Statement No. 71 “Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date”.  The 
statement amends transition provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, establishes accounting and financial reporting 
standards for recognition of contributions made between the measurement date of the net pension liability and 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 68.  The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2014. 
 
 
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 3, 2014, the date on which the financial 
statements were available to be issued.  Management is not aware of any subsequent events that require recognition 
or disclosure in the financial statements. 



 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
  



 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Park SDC Park Reserve
Street / Storm 

SDC
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 29,164$               1,136$                 13,840$               

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities: -$                         -$                         -$                         

 
Fund Balance:

Restricted for:
Capital outlay 29,164                 -                           -                           
Streets -                           -                           13,840                 

Committed to:
Capital outlay -                           1,136                   -                           

Total Fund Balance 29,164                 1,136                   13,840                 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 29,164$               1,136$                 13,840$               

Capital Projects

 
 



- 26 - 

 
 
 
 

Street / Storm 
Reserve

SPWF Project 
Maintenance Total

38,367$               31,566$               114,073$       

-$                         -$                         -$                   

38,367                 -                           67,531           
-                           -                           13,840           

-                           31,566                 32,702           

38,367                 31,566                 114,073         

38,367$               31,566$               114,073$       

Capital Projects

 
 



 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Park SDC Park Reserve
Street / Storm 

SDC
REVENUES

Taxes and assessments -$                     -$                     -$                     
Licenses and permits 6,615               -                       11,600             
Charges for services -                       -                       -                       
Miscellaneous 125                  10                    108                  

Total Revenues 6,740               10                    11,708             

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay -                       -                       -                       

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 6,740               10                    11,708             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in -                       -                       -                       
Transfers out -                       -                       (10,000)            

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses -                       -                       (10,000)            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 6,740               10                    1,708               

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 22,424             1,126               12,132             

FUND BALANCE, end of year 29,164$           1,136$             13,840$           

Capital Projects

 
 



- 27 - 

 
 
 
 
 

Street / Storm 
Reserve

SPWF Project 
Maintenance Total

-$                     737$                737$                
-                       -                       18,215             

13,370             -                       13,370             
340                  134                  717                  

13,710             871                  33,039             

8,154               -                       8,154               

5,556               871                  24,885             

-                       8,000               8,000               
-                       -                       (10,000)            

-                       8,000               (2,000)              

5,556               8,871               22,885             

32,811             22,695             91,188             

38,367$           31,566$           114,073$         

Capital Projects

 
 



- 28 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Taxes and assessments 222,308$         222,308$         229,363$         7,055$             
Fines and forfeitures 25,000             25,000             25,355             355                  
Licenses and permits 89,700             89,700             113,409           23,709             
Intergovernmental 23,050             23,050             22,872             (178)                 
Miscellaneous 39,340             39,340             37,813             (1,527)              

Total Revenues 399,398           399,398           428,812           29,414             

EXPENDITURES
Personal services 104,480           115,907           83,935             31,972             
Materials and services 316,642           316,642           300,044           16,598             
Capital outlay 100                  100                  -                       100                  
Contingency 203,676           192,249           -                       192,249           

Total Expenditures 624,898           624,898           383,979           240,919           

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (225,500)          (225,500)          44,833             270,333           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (3,000)              (3,000)              -                       3,000               

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (228,500)          (228,500)          44,833             273,333           

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 228,500           228,500           289,521           61,021             

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     334,354$         334,354$         

Budget Amounts

 
 



- 29 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - STREET/STORM OPERATING FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Charges for services 22,054$          22,054$          22,478$          424$              
Intergovernmental 103,240          103,240          53,565            (49,675)          
Miscellaneous 250                250                23,379            23,129            

Total Revenues 125,544          125,544          99,422            (26,122)          

EXPENDITURES

Personal services 25,868            25,868            24,218            1,650             
Materials and services 67,604            67,604            35,294            32,310            
Capital outlay 69,500            69,500            255                69,245            
Contingency 78,883            78,883            -                    78,883            

Total Expenditures 241,855          241,855          59,767            182,088          

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (116,311)         (116,311)         39,655            155,966          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 10,000            10,000            10,000            -                    

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (106,311)         (106,311)         49,655            155,966          

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 106,311          106,311          109,400          3,089             

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                  -$                  159,055$        159,055$        

Budget Amounts

 



- 30 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – CITY HALL BUILDING FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Licenses and permits 3,000$             3,000$             1,748$             (1,252)$            
Miscellaneous 200                  200                  605                  405                  

Total Revenues 3,200               3,200               2,353               (847)                 

EXPENDITURES
Materials and services 3,000               3,000               -                       3,000               
Capital outlay 116,337           116,337           -                       116,337           

Total Expenditures 119,337           119,337           -                       119,337           

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (116,137)          (116,137)          2,353               118,490           

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 116,137           116,137           115,775           (362)                 

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     118,128$         118,128$         

Budget Amounts

 
 



- 31 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – PARK SDC FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Licenses and permits 2,205$             2,205$             6,615$             4,410$             
Miscellaneous 60                    60                    125                  65                    

Total Revenues 2,265               2,265               6,740               4,475               

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 24,668             24,668             -                       24,668             

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (22,403)            (22,403)            6,740               29,143             

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 22,403             22,403             22,424             21                    

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     29,164$           29,164$           

Budget Amounts

 
 



- 32 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – PARK RESERVE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance

REVENUES
Miscellaneous 30$                  30$                  10$                  (20)$                 

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 4,530               4,530               -                       4,530               

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4,500)              (4,500)              10                    4,510               

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 4,500               4,500               1,126               (3,374)              

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     1,136$             1,136$             

Budget Amounts

 
 



- 33 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – STREET/STORM SDC FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Licenses and permits 21,600$           21,600$           11,600$           (10,000)$          
Miscellaneous 75                    75                    108                  33                    

Total Revenues 21,675             21,675             11,708             (9,967)              

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 34,729             34,729             -                       34,729             

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (13,054)            (13,054)            11,708             24,762             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out (10,000)            (10,000)            (10,000)            -                       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (23,054)            (23,054)            1,708               24,762             

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 23,054             23,054             12,132             (10,922)            

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     13,840$           13,840$           

Budget Amounts

 
 
  



- 34 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – STREET/STORM RESERVE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Charges for services 13,050$           13,050$           13,370$           320$                
Miscellaneous 100                  100                  340                  240                  

Total Revenues 13,150             13,150             13,710             560                  

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 49,963             49,963             8,154               41,809             

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (36,813)            (36,813)            5,556               42,369             

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 36,813             36,813             32,811             (4,002)              

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     38,367$           38,367$           

Budget Amounts

 
 
 

  



- 35 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – SPWF PROJECT MAINTENANCE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Taxes and assessments 736$                 736$                 737$                 1$                     
Miscellaneous 75                     75                     134                   59                     

Total Revenues 811                   811                   871                   60                     

EXPENDITURES
Materials and services 31,505              31,505              -                       31,505              

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (30,694)            (30,694)            871                   31,565              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
(USES)

Transfers in 8,000                8,000                8,000                -                       

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (22,694)            (22,694)            8,871                31,565              

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 22,694              22,694              22,695              1                       

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     31,566$            31,566$            

Budget Amounts

 
 
 



 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION (MODIFIED CASH BASIS) –  
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Water SDC Water Reserve Sewer SDC
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 45,478$                    26,567$                    28,623$                    

LIABILITIES -                              -                              -                              

NET POSITION:
Restricted for:

Construction 45,478                    -                              28,623                    
Unrestricted -                              26,567                    -                              

Total Net Position 45,478$                  26,567$                  28,623$                  

 
 



- 36 - 

 
 
 
 
 

Sewer Reserve Total

45,552$                    146,220$                

-                              -                              

-                              74,101                    
45,552                    72,119                    

45,552$                  146,220$                

 
 



 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Water SDC Water Reserve Sewer SDC

OPERATING REVENUES -$                        -$                        -$                        

OPERATING EXPENSES -                          -                          -                          

OPERATING INCOME -                          -                          -                          

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Noncapital Financing Revenues (Expenses)

Transfers in -                          20,000                -                          

Capital Financing Revenues (Expenses)
Capital contributions 22,172                -                          8,128                  

Investing Revenues 172                     58                       116                     

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 22,344                20,058                8,244                  

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 22,344                20,058                8,244                  

NET POSITION, beginning of year 23,134                6,509                  20,379                

NET POSITION, end of year 45,478$              26,567$              28,623$              

 
 



- 37 - 

 
 
 
 
 

Sewer Reserve Total

-$                        -$                        

-                          -                          

-                          -                          

40,000                60,000                

-                          30,300                

100                     446                     

40,100                90,746                

40,100                90,746                

5,452                  55,474                

45,552$              146,220$            

 
 



- 38 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - WATER FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Charges for services 306,796$         306,796$         289,442$         (17,354)$          
Miscellaneous -                       -                       50                    50                    
Interest earnings 500                  500                  978                  478                  

Total Revenues 307,296           307,296           290,470           (16,826)            

EXPENDITURES
Personal services 112,550           112,550           89,626             22,924             
Materials and services 121,090           121,090           103,572           17,518             
Debt service

Principal 11,914             11,914             11,914             -                       
Interest 8,978               8,978               8,978               -                       

Capital outlay 24,000             24,000             19,084             4,916               
Contingency 165,294           165,294           -                       165,294           

Total Expenditures 443,826           443,826           233,174           210,652           

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (136,530)          (136,530)          57,296             193,826           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (28,000)            (28,000)            (28,000)            -                       

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (164,530)          (164,530)          29,296             193,826           

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 164,530           164,530           187,663           23,133             

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     216,959$         216,959$         

Budget Amounts

 
 



- 39 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SEWER FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Charges for services 268,056$          268,056$          272,905$          4,849$              
Miscellaneous -                        -                        2,525                2,525                
Interest earnings 500                   500                   861                   361                   

Total Revenues 268,556            268,556            276,291            7,735                

EXPENDITURES
Personal services 126,778            126,778            82,750              44,028              
Materials and services 123,546            144,546            125,961            18,585              
Capital outlay 9,000                9,000                1,589                7,411                
Contingency 116,624            95,624              -                        95,624              

Total Expenditures 375,948            375,948            210,300            165,648            

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (107,392)           (107,392)           65,991              173,383            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
(USES)

Transfers out (40,000)             (40,000)             (40,000)             -                        

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (147,392)           (147,392)           25,991              173,383            

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 147,392            147,392            151,727            4,335                

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                      -$                      177,718$          177,718$          

Budget Amounts

 
 



- 40 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL OBLIGATION WASTEWATER BOND FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Taxes and assessments 304,713$          304,713$          317,784$          13,071$            
Interest earnings 300                   300                   795                   495                   

Total Revenues 305,013            305,013            318,579            13,566              

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal 185,000            185,000            185,000            -                        
Interest 120,813            120,813            120,813            -                        

Total Expenditures 305,813            305,813            305,813            -                        

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (800)                  (800)                  12,766              13,566              

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 10,800              10,800              20,410              9,610                

FUND BALANCE, end of year 10,000$            10,000$            33,176$            23,176$            

Budget Amounts

 
 
 



- 41 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – WATER SDC FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Licenses and permits 59,132$           59,132$           22,172$           (36,960)$          
Interest earnings 100                  100                  172                  72                    

Total Revenues 59,232             59,232             22,344             (36,888)            

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 87,562             87,562             -                       87,562             

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (28,330)            (28,330)            22,344             50,674             

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 28,330             28,330             23,134             (5,196)              

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     45,478$           45,478$           

Budget Amounts

 
 
 



- 42 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – WATER RESERVE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Interest earnings 70$                  70$                  58$                  (12)$                 

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 23,800             23,800             -                       23,800             

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (23,730)            (23,730)            58                    23,788             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 20,000             20,000             20,000             -                       

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (3,730)              (3,730)              20,058             23,788             

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 3,730               3,730               6,509               2,779               

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     26,567$           26,567$           

Budget Amounts

 
 



- 43 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – SEWER SDC FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Licenses and permits 8,128$             8,128$             8,128$             -$                     
Interest earnings 75                    75                    116                  41                    

Total Revenues 8,203               8,203               8,244               41                    

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 28,580             28,580             -                       28,580             

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (20,377)            (20,377)            8,244               28,621             

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 20,377             20,377             20,379             2                      

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     28,623$           28,623$           

Budget Amounts

 



- 44 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  
(MODIFIED CASH BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL – SEWER RESERVE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Original Final Actual Variance

REVENUES
Interest earnings 25$                  25$                  100$                75$                  

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 45,477             45,477             -                       45,477             

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (45,452)            (45,452)            100                  45,552             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
(USES)

Transfers in 40,000             40,000             40,000             -                       

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (5,452)              (5,452)              40,100             45,552             

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 5,452               5,452               5,452               -                       

FUND BALANCE, end of year -$                     -$                     45,552$           45,552$           

Budget Amounts

 
 
 



 

OTHER SCHEDULES 



- 45 - 

CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 
SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

Tax Year

2013-2014 $ -                    $ 557,722 $ 136 $ (15,736) $ (525,494) $ 16,628           

2012-2013 18,792           -                    106                (311)              (9,860)           8,727             

2011-2012 9,238             -                    75                  (194)              (4,301)           4,818             

2010-2011 5,729             -                    62                  (233)              (3,817)           1,741             

2009-2010 1,884             -                    166                (146)              (1,308)           596                

2008-2009 656                -                    -                    (124)              (180)              352                

2007-2008 375                -                    -                    (101)              (88)                186                

Prior Years 934                -                    -                    (187)              (70)                677                

Total  $ 37,608            $ 557,722         $ 545                 $ (17,032)          $ (545,118)       $ 33,725           

Interest,
Discounts &
Adjustments Turnovers

Uncollected
Balance

June 30, 2014July 1, 2013
Balance

Uncollected
2013-2014

Levy
Added To

Rolls

 
 



 

COMPLIANCE SECTION 
 



- 46 - 

 
475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, Oregon 97301 

(503) 581-7788 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 

 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Council Members 
City of Aurora 
21420 Main Street NE 
Aurora, Oregon  97002 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
basic financial statements of the City of Aurora, Oregon as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 3, 2014.  
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-
000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts.  However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion.   
 
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures 
which included, but were not limited to the following: 
 
 Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295). 
 Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment. 
 Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law. 
 Programs funded from outside sources. 
 Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets. 
 Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C). 
 Accountability for collecting or receiving money by elected officials - no money was collected or received 

by elected officials. 
 
In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City was not in substantial 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon 
Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum 
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations except as follows: 
  



- 47 - 

 
 
 

 The excess of actual revenues over actual expenditures in second preceding year do not equal the beginning 
balance in first preceding year.  This occurred across multiple funds. 

 The City does not maintain adequate capital assets and depreciation records. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over 
financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control.  
 
We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City, in a separate letter dated *****, 2014. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of the City of 
Aurora, Oregon and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these parties. 
 
 
   GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C. 
   CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
 
   By:   
    Thomas E. Glogau, A Shareholder 
    December 3, 2014 
 
 


	1 December 2014 Council agenda
	AGENDA
	Aurora City Council Meeting

	2 Council Minutes November draft-
	Minutes
	Aurora City Council Meeting

	3 PC Minutes November 2014
	4 HRB October 2014 minutes
	5 201411 Aurora
	6 Dec Treasurer's report
	7 City Recorder Report November 2014-
	7a LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR PERMITS
	8 Simon Resignation Letter
	9 Antique Faire
	10 Certified Copy of Election Votes 2014
	City of Aurora 2014

